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City of Seattle
Human Services Department

2016
Community Health Care Facilities
Capital Improvements
Request for Proposal

APPLICATION
Instructions and Materials

This Application Instructions and Materials packet contains information and materials for respondents applying for the 2016 Community Health Care Facilities Capital Improvements RFP. The RFP Guidelines is a separate document that outlines the RFP award process and provides more details on the service and funding requirements.

	I. Submission Instructions & Deadline



Completed application packets are due by 4:00 p.m. on Monday, April 11, 2016.

Application packets must be received in person, by mail, or electronic submission. No faxed or e-mailed proposals will be accepted. Proposals must be received and date/time stamped by the 4:00 p.m. deadline. Late or incomplete proposals or proposals that do not meet the minimum eligibility requirements outlined in this RFP will not be accepted or reviewed for funding consideration.

Applicants must make arrangements to ensure that applications are received by HSD by the deadline, regardless of the submission method selected. When using HSD’s Online Submission System, it is advisable to upload application documents several hours prior to the deadline in case you encounter an issue with your internet connectivity which impacts your ability to upload documents. HSD is not responsible for ensuring that applications are received by the deadline.

· Electronic Submittal: Application packets may be submitted electronically via HSD’s Online Submission System at http://web6.seattle.gov/hsd/rfi/index.aspx.
· Hand Delivery or US Mail: The application packet can be hand-delivered or mailed to:

Seattle Human Services Department
RFP Response – Community Health Care Facilities
Attn: Michael Look

Delivery 		Address	Mailing Address
700 5th Ave., 58th Floor			P.O. Box 34215
Seattle, WA 98104-5017		Seattle, WA 98124-4215


	II. Format Instructions



A. Applications will be rated only on the information requested and outlined in this RFP, including any clarifying information requested by HSD. Do not include a cover letter, brochures, or letters of support. Applications that do not follow the required format may be deemed ineligible and may not be rated.

B. The application should be typed or word processed on double-sided, letter-sized (8 ½ x 11-inch) sheets. Please use one-inch margins, single spacing, and minimum size 11-point font.

C. The application may not exceed a total of 15 pages including the narrative sections and attachments (unless the attachment is requested and specifically states that it will not count toward the page limit). Pages which exceed the page limitation will not be included in the rating.

D. Organize your application according to the section headings that follow in Section III. For the narrative questions, please include section titles, and question numbers. You do not need to rewrite the questions for specific elements of each question.

	III. Proposal Narrative & Rating Criteria



Write a narrative response to sections A – E. Answer each section completely according to the questions. Do not exceed a total of 15 pages for section A – E combined.

	NARRATIVE QUESTIONS 

	A. HEALTH CARE FACILITY PROJECT DESCRIPTION (25 points)
1. Describe your current health care facility and describe why it does not meet your organization’s current or anticipated future service needs of the priority population. 
· Are you lacking in capacity – by what measure?
· Does your facility cause you to compromise on quality or standards? By what measure?
2. Describe your proposed health care facility and outline the key changes or improvements that will be made over your existing facility.
· Describe how these facility improvements will help your program achieve the required outcomes identified in the RFP.
· Describe how the new facility will allow your organization to meet your own service goals and the needs of the priority population.
3. Answer the following questions about your current facility:
· Street address
· Square footage, number of floors (If you lease or occupy a part of a building, describe only your space)
· Age of building
· Other capacity measures common for medical facilities
4. Answer the following questions for your new facility:
· Are you aware if the local zoning designation allows for the capital work you are contemplating? If yes, describe the zoning designation.
· Street address (if different from current)
· Square footage, number of floors (If you lease or occupy a part of a building, describe only your space)
· Other capacity measures common for medical facilities

5. Has a hazardous materials review (i.e. “Level One Review”) been done on the building / property you intend to work on? Please attach a copy to the application.
6. Have you secured the services of a licensed architect? Have architectural drawings been produced? (If yes, DO NOT submit them with this application, but we may request to see them during the course of our review of the applications.)
7. What is your timeline for bidding, construction start and completion? Have the necessary permits been secured? If not, when are they anticipated? Are there hazardous materials present that will need to be abated or addressed prior to construction?
8. Is the proposed project in leased space or applicant-owned space? 
· If the space is leased, the landlord must provide a statement approving of the proposed project (see Attachment 4).
· If the applicant owns the property, the applicant must explicitly agree to the recording of a restrictive use covenant and/or deed of trust (as security for performance) on the property to enforce the continuing use requirement as stated in Section V.B of the RFP. 

Rating Criteria – A strong application meets all of the criteria listed below.
· Responses indicate that the applicant has a thorough understanding of, and clear plan for, the project and that implementation of the proposed project can begin promptly.
· The proposal outlines minimal or no site control issues that may delay construction. 
· The project timeline is realistic.
· There is a clear connection between the facility improvements and the services to be provided for the priority population, and / or quality improvements.


	B. CAPACITY AND EXPERIENCE (19 points)
1. What expertise within your organization do you have to plan and manage a major capital improvement project? If you lack such expertise, what outside assistance have you procured?
2. How will services continue, and at what level, while the capital project is underway?
3. What service contingencies have you developed in the event the capital project is delayed in starting and / or completion?
4. If you are undertaking this project in conjunction with another party, please describe the relationship and roles. Who is the other party, and why were they chosen?
5. What additional staffing needs will you have to fill to make the most effective and efficient use of your new space? What is your plan to meet those needs?

Rating Criteria – A strong application meets all of the criteria listed below.
· Applicant describes staff experience or expertise, or has procured such expertise, to effectively manage a capital project of the size and scope contemplated.
· The applicant demonstrates a clear understanding of contingency planning, both for services and finances.
· If another party is involved in the project, there is a clear rationale for their involvement – not just their role but their capacity to fulfill their role.
· Applicant demonstrates clear understanding of, and provides a clear plan to meet, staffing requirements for new facility. 

	C. SERVICE AND ASSET MANAGEMENT (17 points)
1. What are the impacts of the proposed project on your operating and facility maintenance budgets? Please attach a five-year operating budget pro forma for the relevant programs following completion of the project and include your most recent actual budget. Include any and all debt service on the facility.
2. What are your agency’s asset management plans and policies? How does the agency plan to maintain the useful life of the facility after completing the improvements proposed in this application? Will the agency maintain operating or replacement reserves for this facility?

Rating Criteria – A strong application meets all of the criteria listed below.
· The five-year pro forma identifies realistic costs and revenues associated with any expansion of services.
· The applicant possesses a logical, comprehensive, and financially sound asset management plan and replacement reserve policy.

	D. CULTURAL COMPETENCY (19 points)
1. Describe your experience providing services to diverse groups, including racial and ethnic minorities, immigrants and refugees, low-income populations, and English language learners. If experience is limited, what steps will you take to provide culturally competent services?
2. What challenges and successes have you experienced, or do you anticipate, in increasing services to people from diverse cultural and economic backgrounds?
3. Describe how the agency board and staff represent the cultural, linguistic and socio-economic background of program participants.
4. Describe your program’s strategy for ensuring cultural and linguistic competence is infused through your policies, procedures and practices.
5. What kind of trainings does your agency provide to support cultural competency?

Rating Criteria – A strong application meets all of the criteria listed below.
· Applicant demonstrates understanding of cultural competence and describes how cultural competence is incorporated into the program and service delivery.
· Applicant demonstrates the ability to provide culturally competent services within diverse communities and shows an understanding of the challenges.
· Applicant has a proven track record of providing culturally and linguistically relevant services to diverse focus population(s) and priority community(ies).
· Applicant’s staff composition reflects the cultural and linguistic characteristics of the focus population(s) and priority community(ies).
· Applicant’s board composition reflects the cultural and linguistic characteristics of the focus population(s) and priority community(ies).
· Applicant describes existing policies and procedures, or a strategy to develop policies and procedures that demonstrate a respect and appreciation for the cultural and linguistic characteristics of the focus population(s) and priority community(ies).
· Applicant has demonstrated a commitment to ongoing training and development within the agency to promote and support culturally competent service delivery.


	E. BUDGET AND LEVERAGING (20 points)
1. Complete the Proposed Project Budget (Attachment 3; this does not count toward the 15 page narrative limit). 
2. What are your financing alternatives for completing this project by your target completion date if you do not receive the full amount of funds you have requested, or if your fundraising efforts come up short? Do you have a reduced or discrete scope of work that can be successfully accomplished in the timeframe with fewer dollars? If yes, please describe that reduced scope. 
3. Describe your organization’s financial management system. How does your agency establish and maintain general accounting principles to ensure adequate administrative and accounting procedures and internal controls necessary to safeguard all funds that may be awarded under the terms of this RFP. 
4. Describe how project costs were derived. Did you hire a consultant? Were the costs provided by a builder? 
5. What financial contingencies have you developed in case the project is delayed in starting and / or completion?

Rating Criteria – A strong application meets all of the criteria listed below.
· Costs are reasonable and appropriate given the nature of the project.
· The applicant identifies a sufficient amount of other funds to be used with any funds awarded from this RFP to ensure that the project is fully funded, including necessary contingencies.
· Project cost derivation is based on sound construction estimating methodology.
· The applicant has a demonstrated capacity to ensure adequate administrative and accounting procedures and controls necessary to safeguard all funds that may be awarded under the terms of this RFP.


	Total = 100 points




	IV. Completed Application Requirements



AT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL
To be considered Complete, your application packet must include all of the following items or the application will be deemed incomplete and will not be rated:

1. A completed and signed two-page Application Cover Sheet (Attachment 2).
2. A completed Narrative response (see Sections II & III for instructions).
3. A completed Proposed Project Revenue Summary (Attachment 3).
4. A completed Proposed Project Budget (Attachment 4).
5. A completed Statement of Site Control (Attachment 5).
6. Roster of your agency’s current Board of Directors.
7. Minutes from your agency’s last three Board of Directors meetings.
8. Current verification of nonprofit status or evidence of incorporation or status as a legal entity. Your agency must have a federal tax identification number/employer identification number.
9. If your agency has an approved indirect rate, a copy of proof that the rate is approved by an appropriate federal agency or another entity.
10. If you are proposing to provide any new (for your agency) services, attach a start-up timeline for each service.
11. If you are proposing a significant collaboration with another agency, attach a signed letter of intent from that agency’s Director or other authorized representative.

AFTER MINIMUM ELIGIBILITY SCREENING AND DETERMINATION OF A COMPLETED APPLICATION 
If HSD does not already have them on file, any or all of the following documents may be requested after applications have been determined eligible for review and rating. Agencies have four (4) business days from the date of written request to provide requested documents to the funding process coordinator:

1. A copy of the agency’s current fiscal year’s financial statements reports, consisting of the Balance Sheet, Income Statement and Statement of Cash Flows, certified by the agency’s CFO, Finance Officer, or Board Treasurer. 
2. A copy of the agency’s most recent audit report.
3. A copy of the agency’s most recent fiscal year-ending Form 990 report. 
4. A current certificate of commercial liability insurance and property insurance. Note: if selected to receive funding, the agency’s insurance must conform to MASA requirements at the start of the contract.

	V. List of Attachments & Related Materials



Attachment 1:	Application Checklist
Attachment 2:	Application Cover Sheet
Attachment 3: 	Proposed Project Revenue Summary
Attachment 4:	Proposed Project Budget

Attachment 5:	Statement of Site Control
2016 Community Health Care Facilities Request for Proposal	Page 2
Guidelines and Application Document
(V.2.0 - 2016)

2016 Community Health Care Facilities RFP
Application Checklist

This optional checklist is to help you ensure your application is complete prior to submission. Please do not submit this form with your application.

HAVE YOU….

[bookmark: Check1]|_|	Completed and signed the 2-page Application Cover Sheet (Attachment 2)?*

|_|	Completed each section of the Narrative response?
· Must not exceed 15 pages (8 ½ x 11), single spaced, double-sided, size 11 font, with 1 inch margins.
· Page count does not include the required forms (Attachments 2, 3 and 4) and supporting documents requested in this RFP.
· A completed narrative response addresses all of the following:

|_|	Program Design Description (25%)
· There should be a separate section for each service component you have selected. To avoid repeating yourself, it is acceptable to refer to a previous service component where appropriate (e.g. “same as previous component”).
|_|	Capacity and Experience (19%)
|_|	Service and Asset Management (17%)
|_|	Cultural Competency (19%)
|_|	Budget and Leveraging (20%)

|_|	Completed the full Proposed Project Revenue Summary (Attachment 3)?*

|_|	Completed the full Proposed Project Budget (Attachment 4)?*

|_|	Completed the Statement of Site Control (Attachment 5)?*

|_|	Attached the following supporting documents?*
|_|	Roster of your current Board of Directors 
|_|	Minutes from your agency’s last three Board of Directors meetings
|_|	Current verification of nonprofit status or evidence of incorporation or status as a legal entity
|_|	If your agency has an approved indirect rate, have you attached a copy of proof that the rate is approved by an appropriate federal agency or another entity?

|_|	If you are proposing a significant collaboration with another agency, have you attached a signed letter of intent from that agency’s Director or other authorized representative?*
|_| If you are proposing to provide any new (for your agency) services, attach a start-up timeline for each service.*

*These documents do not count against the 15 page limit for the proposal narrative section.

All applications are due to the City of Seattle Human Services Department by 4:00 p.m. on Monday, April 11, 2016. Application packets received after this deadline will not be considered. See Section I for submission instructions.
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City of Seattle
Human Services Department

2016 Community Health Care Facilities RFP
Application Cover Sheet

	1. Applicant Agency:
	[bookmark: Text1]     

	2. Agency Executive Director:
	[bookmark: Text2]     

	3. Agency Primary Contact

	
	Name:
	[bookmark: Text3]     
	Title:
	[bookmark: Text4]     

	
	Address:
	[bookmark: Text5]     

	
	Email:
	[bookmark: Text6]     

	
	Phone #:
	[bookmark: Text7]     

	4. Organization Type

	
	[bookmark: Check2]|_| Non-Profit
	|_| For Profit
	|_| Public Agency
	[bookmark: Text8]|_| Other (Specify):      

	5. Federal Tax ID or EIN:
	[bookmark: Text9]     
	6. DUNS Number:
	[bookmark: Text10]     

	7. WA Business License Number:
	[bookmark: Text11]     

	8. Proposed Facility Name:
	[bookmark: Text12]     

	9. Funding Amount Requested:
	[bookmark: Text13]     

	10. Address of Proposed Facility:
	[bookmark: Text14]     

	11. Partner / Co-developer Agency (if applicable):
	[bookmark: Text15]     

	
	Contact Name:
	[bookmark: Text16]     
	Title:
	[bookmark: Text17]     

	
	Address:
	[bookmark: Text18]     

	
	Email:
	[bookmark: Text19]     
	Phone Number:
	[bookmark: Text20]     

	
	Description of partner agency proposed activities:

	
	[bookmark: Text21]     

	
	

	
	




	Authorized physical signature of applicant agency

	To the best of my knowledge and belief, all information in this application is true and correct. The document has been duly authorized by the governing body of the applicant who will comply with all contractual obligations if the applicant is awarded funding.

	Name and Title of Authorized Representative:
	[bookmark: Text29]     

	Signature of Authorized Representative:
	
	Date:
	[bookmark: Text30]     

	
	
	
	




Attachment 2

2016 Community Health Care Facilities RFP
Proposed Project Revenue Summary

	Applicant Agency Name:
	[bookmark: Text31]     

	Proposed Program Name:
	[bookmark: Text32]     



	REVENUE SUMMARY

	

	
	Total
	
	Fund Status*
	Comments

	This Request
	
	
	2
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Other Funds - 
	
	
	
	

	
	City - Other
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other - Government
	
	
	
	

	
	County: 
	
	
	
	

	
	State
	
	
	
	

	
	Federal: 
	
	
	
	

	
	Agency Contribution
	
	
	
	

	
	Private Foundation
	
	
	
	

	
	Charitable Donations
	
	
	
	

	
	Other**: 
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Subtotal Other Funds
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total Project Funding
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	* Please note status of funds as either (1) Committed, (2) Pending (i.e. application has been submitted) or (3) to be applied for.
** Attach a separate list if more space is necessary.





Attachment 3


2016 Community Health Care Facilities RFP
Proposed Project Budget

	Applicant Agency Name: 
	
	

	Proposed Project Name: 
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	RFP
	
	Other
	
	Total

	
	
	Funds
	
	Funds
	
	Cost

	Acquisition/Site Control
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Land/Building Acquisition
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Real Estate Taxes
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Title Insurance
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Closing Costs
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Appraisal
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Relocation
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other _______________
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Subtotal
	
	
	
	
	

	Professional Services
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Architectural Services
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Planning/Feasibility Studies
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Engineering Studies
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Hazardous Materials Consultant
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Legal Fees
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Contracted Project & Const. Mgmt.
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Dev. Consultant/Fundraising
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other _______________
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Subtotal
	
	
	
	
	

	Construction/Rehabilitation
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Construction
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Construction Sales Tax
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Hazardous Materials Abatement
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Permits
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Construction Contingency
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Other _______________
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Subtotal
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total Project Cost
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	



  


Attachment 4

2016 Community Health Care Facilities RFP
Statement of Site Control
	Applicant Agency Name:
	     

	Proposed Program Name:
	     




	Describe the ownership or site control mechanism that will be in effect at the time the project is to begin and through the continuing use period. Mark the applicable box.


	|_|
	Agency owns (will own) the property outright, in its own name (attach copy of Deed of Trust)

	|_|
	Agency controls (will control) the property through a partnership/limited liability company (attach copy of Deed of Trust) and will own a portion of a condominium or lease from the partnership/limited liability company

	|_|
	Agency has a purchase and sale agreement (attach copy of agreement)

	|_|
	Agency leases (will lease) the property (attach copy of lease and provide the following certification):

	
	IF LEASE, agency must certify with an appropriate signature that the landlord has been notified of this application for funds and that receipt of such funds may require amending the lease. The landlord shall also have been informed of the continuing use requirements.

	LANDLORD’S SIGNATURE:
	
	

	
	

	|_|
	Other: Please describe or explain: 
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